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	BRIEF HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION: The 1869 Bird’s Eye Map and May 1923 Sanborn Fire Insurance Co. map show Block 32 was previously occupied by the sizable estate of John C. Skoglund, whose family has an interesting history as local morticians and furniture dealers among other business interests. Frank and Mary Sunleaf acquired the Skoglund property and relocated the house to 416 Peyton Street, subdividing a portion of the property into three lots—50 feet wide and fronting on Fourth Street.

Arthur Taylor (“A. T.”) Richardson, Sr. was born May 15, 1891 (White Township, Beaver County, Pennsylvania) and married Cyrilla “Rilla” Raye Fleming on February 17, 1917, in Pennsylvania. When he registered for the World War I military draft, he was employed as a traveling salesman and lived in Rochester, Pennsylvania. The Richardson's first child, John F., was born in 1917; their second son, Arthur Taylor, Jr., was born in 1919 (both born in Pennsylvania). 

By January 8, 1920, the Richardson family lived at 212 Fifth St. (former street numbering system) in Geneva, Illinois, where A. T. Richardson, Sr. was employed as a commercial salesman with a local foundry. The following year (1921), Richardson and a partner established Smith & Richardson Manufacturing Co., a “foundry supply manufacturer,” at 727 Ford Street (former street numbering system), Geneva. (The business continues to operate at 727 May Street, Geneva in 2021.) A daughter, Ruth, was born in 1922 in Geneva. 

Rilla Richardson acquired the northern 50 feet of the original lots 9 and 10 of Block 32 on April 27, 1924. In 1925, the Richardsons commissioned the Wilson Bros. to erect a new house at 128 North Fourth Street. The catalog house (Gordon-Van Tine, Home No. 529 - 1926 catalog, p. 26 and 1927 catalog, p. 16c) was under construction by September 4, 1925 (Geneva Republican). 

At the dawn of the 20th century, several entities entered the “catalog home” business, including Aladdin, Sears, Roebuck Co. Incorporated in 1907, and the Gordon-Van Tine Company (also known as the U.N. Roberts and Company, which initially sold construction materials to builders). By 1910, the Gordon-Van Tine Company offered house plans and became one of the first companies in the United States to offer fully precut houses. The lumber for Gordon-Van Tine Co. houses came from company mills in Davenport, Iowa; Chehalis, Washington; St. Louis, Missouri; and from one of two southern lumberyards located in Louisiana and Mississippi. 

The Gordon-Van Tine Company sold an estimated 54,000 homes under the Gordon-Van Tine name. Beginning in 1917, the company also provided materials to the Montgomery Ward company that contracted with Gordon-Van Tine for materials for some 20,000 Wardway homes—an identical line of catalog houses. The Gordon-Van Tine Company also provided plans and materials for precut barns and other farm structures. The Gordon-Van Tine Company remained in operation until 1946 when it was sold to a Cincinnati salvage firm. The Gordon-Van Tine Company was liquidated just as the post-World War II housing boom was beginning.

When completed, the Richardson House was nearly identical to the house constructed a decade earlier at 310 S. Fourth Street.

A.T. Richardson, Sr. died on October 27, 1959; Rilla Richardson died on April 19, 1971. Six months prior to her death, Rilla Richardson sold the 128 N. Fourth Street property on October 24, 1970, to James D. and Martha E. Keith, who then sold the property in 1996 to the Smith family. Between 1970 and 1999, the middle window at the second floor was moved to the south and no longer aligned with the first-floor window. In 2006, the Smith family sold the property to Nancy and Jim Hamilton (former HPC Commissioner, 2016-2020); Jim Hamilton added the wrap-around porch (designed by architect Sean Gallagher) which was approved by the HPC on May 15, 2007.

The property is notable for its association with architecture and methods of construction—specifically precut, catalog homes.


	SOURCES: GHPC Case Studies; GHM Archives; 2016 North Geneva NRHP Update; 1869 Bird's Eye View of Geneva; Sanborn Fire Insurance Maps; Kane County Recorder's Office Land Records; https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Gordon%E2%80%93Van_Tine_Company_Historic_District 
	AS1 GENERAL DESCRIPTION: Gabled garage was built contemporaneously to the house; garage retains original siding; original vehicle doorways (replacement doors); and double-hung (3/1) windows.
	AS2 GENERAL DESCRIPTION: n/a
	GENERAL DESCRIPTION: n/a
	LEFT STREET VIEW: 
	RIGHT STREET VIEW: 
	STREET VIEW: 
	ACCESSORY 1: 
	REAR CORNER/ ACCESSORY: 
	CORNER STREET/ ACCESSORY: 
	ACCESSORY 2: 
	ACCESSORY 3: 
	LANDSCAPE 1: 
	LANDSCAPE 2: 
	PROPERTY ADDRESS: 128 North Fourth Street
	SIGNIFICANT ALTERATION DATES: 2007
	ARCHITECT: Gordon-Van Tine; Sean Gallagher 
	DATE OF CONSTRUCTION: 1925
	COMMON NAME: n/a
	GENERAL PROPERTY INFORMATION: Richardson House
	ARCHITECTURAL DATA: Colonial Revival
	OVERALL PLAN SHAPE: Rectangular
	NUMBER OF STORIES: 2
	FOUNDATION MATERIAL: Poured Concrete
	PRIMARY WALL MATERIALS: Clapboard
	FRONT PORCH: Full Facade, Wrap
	VISIBLE SIDE PORCH: Yes (non-historic)
	ENTRY DOORS: Undetermined 
	WINDOW MATERIAL: Wood
	WINDOW STYLE: Double-hung (4/1)
	PRIMARY ROOF FORM: Gable
	PRIMARY ROOF MATERIAL: Asphalt
	VISIBLE CHIMNEY: Yes
	CHIMNEY MATERIAL: Brick
	OTHER SIGNIFICANT ARCHITECTURAL FEATURES: Catalog / pre-cut house, possibly an earlier version of a 1926 Gordon and Van Tine Co. plan. Original entry stoop replaced in 2007 with veranda (porch) that alters the historic facade of the catalog plans; porch is reversible.
	PARCEL IDENTIFICATION NUMBER PIN: 12-03-405-005
	BUILDER: n/a
	WILSON BROTHERS: BOTH


